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To help ensure equal access to information, the City of
Portland Bureau of Planning offers the following services
to disabled citizens:

Interpreter (two workihg days notice required);

Accessible meeting places;

Audio Loop equipped hearing rooms in City Hall and
the Portland Building; and

Planning documents printed in large type sizes for the
visually-impaired (two working days notice required).

If you have a disability and need accommodation, please

call 823-7700 (TDD 823-6868). Persons needing a sign
language interpreter must call at least 48 hours in
advance. '

Funding for the Bureau of Planning’s participation was provided as a part of the OSE
Community Plan project. Financial support was provided by the Portland Bureau of Housing
and Community Development (Federal Community Development Block Grant funds), the
Portland Department of Transportation (Regional Rail Program), the Portland Bureau of
Environmental Services, and the City of Portland’s General Fund.
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Introduction

The South Tabor Neighborhood Association enthusiastically took up the challenge
of preparing this plan in conjunction with the larger Outer Southeast Community
Plan. During the past two years, we have reached out to our neighbors and
businesses to prepare a plan which reflects the vision we have of ourselves and
where we want to be in the future. '

We are fortunate that we have been given this opportunity, since our very stability
tends to make us forget that the changes occurring around us could affect us in
unanticipated ways unless we identify what is really important to us to keep and
what we are willing to give up to make our neighborhood and our city a better place
to live, work and play.

Neighborhood Description

South Tabor Neighborhood Association is bounded by SE Division Street on the
north, SE 52nd Avenue on the west, SE Powell Boulevard on the south, and SE
82nd Avenue on the east. South Tabor is a largely single-family residential
neighborhood with multifamily units along Powell Boulevard and Division Street.
Commercial activities prevail along 82nd Avenue, although there are some
businesses along Powell and a small number of neighborhood markets scattered
throughout the rest of the area. We have two elementary schools, a middle school,
a high school, five church buildings, and a park.

Division St.

puzs
puzs

Powell Bivd.
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Plan Organization

The South Tabor Neighborhood Plan consists of several parts. They are the
Background, the Overall Neighborhood Goal, Comprehensive Plan Policies and
Objectives, Action Charts and a Neighborhood Advocacy Agenda. The policies and
objectives were adopted by Ordinance No. 169763. The Action charts were adopted
by Resolution No. 35491. Resolutions are advisory to decision makers and do not

have the force of law.

The Background includes a Neighborhood Description, Neighborhood History, Plan
Purpose, Plan Process and its Relationship to Portland's Comprehensive Plan. This
material is for the reader's information. None of it was adopted or made part of
Portland's Comprehensive Plan.

The Overall Neighborhood Goal ties the South Tabor Neighborhood Plan to the
Quter Southeast Community Plan and Portland's adopted Comprehensive Plan. It
was adopted by ordinance as a policy in the Outer Southeast Community Plan. It
sets the stage for the Policies.

The South Tabor Neighborhood Plan's Comprehensive Plan Policies and Objectives
address the aspects of the South Tabor Neighborhood over which those participating
in the planning process wish to provide guidance to decision makers. They were
adopted as part of the Outer Southeast Community Plan by ordinance. The Policies
state the neighborhood's desires for housing; transportation; economic
development; public safety; social, cultural and educational environment; parks,
recreation and open space; and Urban Design, Historic Preservation and
Neighborhood Livability. The Objectives detail ways in which to reach these
policies.

The Action Charts specify projects, programs and regulatory measures that carry out
the Neighborhood Plan's Policies. They are assigned a time frame and possible
champion, or implementor, to carry them out. Programs and projects were adopted
by resolution, which means they do not have the force of law. Regulatory measures
which propose amending zoning designations or the zoning code are consistent
with the Outer Southeast Community Plan.

The Neighborhood Advocacy Agenda lists items for which the South Tabor
Neighborhood wishes to advocate but cannot be included as part of the Quter
Southeast Community Plan. Either they deal with city-wide changes to city codes or
are requests for capital expenditures that are unlikely to be made within the next 20
years. Some issues are of regional importance. None of it was adopted or made part
of Portland's Comprehensive Plan.



Neighborhood History
Compiled by Kathryn M. Notson

Many prominent Portland pioneers lived within the area which is now called the
South Tabor Neighborhood.

Joshua Ewing Witten (1822-1882} was born in Tennessee. He married Nancy Roork
and they had several children. They came to Oregon about 1852, settling a Donation
Land Claim of 323 acres in 1853-54 between what is now known as SE 52nd Avenue,
SE 72nd Avenue, SE Division Street and SE Powell Boulevard. They lived on this
claim until 1872. He borrowed blacksmith tools from Clinton Kelly and paid for
them by doing blacksmithing near his home. Some of his well known customers
were Clinton Kelly, Plympton Kelly, Perry Prettyman, William Kern, Ezra and Jacob
Johnson, Robert Gray, Gideon Tibbetts and O. P. Lent. Joshua's debts were paid in
full in November 1858. Joshua was a Methodist. He sometimes preached and he
enjoyed singing and taught music at a singing school using a book containing patent
or shape notes.

J. W. Witten House, oldest east side landmark, near 57th and Division Street. Witten was a
blacksmith who died in 1882, Courtesy of OR His Soc. # CN 023609



Robert Gray, Jr. (1812-1892) was born in Ohio. He married Sarah Ann in 1850 in
lllinois, arriving in Oregon in September 1853. They settled a Donation Land Claim
of 160 acres in 1855 which was roughly bounded by what is now known as SE Powell
Boulevard, SE 72nd Avenue, SE Division Street, SE 80th Avenue, SE Lincoln Street
and SE 85th Avenue. They lived on their claim until 1866. Gray became a well
known tobacco grower.

Plympton Kelly (1828-1906) was born near Somerset, Pulaski County, Kentucky. He
arrived in Oregon in 1848 with his father, Clinton Kelly. He settled a 322 acre
Donation Land Claim called the Kelly Butte Farm in 1859. His claim was between
what is now known as SE 85th Avenue, SE 101st Avenue, SE Lincoln Street and SE
Powell Boulevard. He was 6'1", had black hair and blue eyes. He was a Methodist
preacher like his father and a Republican. In 1849 he helped establish Taylor Street
Methodist Church and was superintendent of several schools, including Mt. Tabor
and Clinton Kelly School. He also operated the steamer Multnomah from 1858-59.
He was a member of the Sons of Temperance and Good Templars and a charter
member of the Evening Star Grange. One outstanding characteristic he had was his
independent nature. He married Elizabeth A. Clark in 1864 and they had 6 children.
He lived on his claim until he died in 1906. He was buried in Multnomah Cemetery
which was located between what is now SE Powell Boulevard, SE 39th and SE 40th
Avenues.

What was once settled by three men and their families is now shared by nearly 2,600
households!

Schools and School Names

In our neighborhood we have five public schools, four of which were named for
Oregon settlers.

Benjamin Franklin High School was originally located at Creston Elementary
School from 1914-1916. The current building opened in September 1916. It was
named after Benjamin Franklin (1706-1790), a statesman and philosopher, who
lived during the time of the American Revolution.

Joseph Kellogg Middle School was annexed from District 44 in 1906. From 1906-1914
it was known as South Mt. Tabor School and then as Hoffman School from 1914-
1917. A Mr. Hoffman sold his property to the school district. This building opened
in February 1914. The name was changed from Hoffman to Joseph Kellogg School
in 1918 due to the anti-German sentiment which developed during World War I.
Captain Joseph Kellogg (1812-1903) was born in Canada. His father, Captain Orrin
Kellogg, and mother, Margaret Miller, went to visit relatives in Canada and because
war between Great Britain and the United States broke out, they were unable to
return to the United States until after the war ended. He was declared a citizen of
the United States by an Act of Congress. Joseph lived most of his life in Ohio as a
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farmer until 1847. He married Estella A. Bushnell in 1844. They arrived in Oregon
in 1848. He was a Republican and a Mason. He established Milwaukie, Oregon,
built a schooner, steamboat, flour mills and sawmills, but is remembered for
founding a river transportation company called Peoples Transportation Co. in 1864
and constructing a basin above Willamette Falls. He eventually sold out to Ben
Holladay.

George H. Atkinson Elementary School was originally known as North School from
1868-1891 and the current building was built in 1953. The school was named for
Reverend George H. Atkinson (1818-1889). Atkinson was born in Newburyport,
Massachusetts. He farmed and taught until 1839. He attended Dartmouth College
(1839-1843) and then attended Andover Theological Seminary (1843-1846). He
married Nancy Bates in 1846. They had six children. In 1848, he arrived in Oregon.
He was a Congregationalist minister 15 years in Falls City where he built the church
building and a women's seminary. He was school superintendent in Clackamas and
Multnomah Counties for two terms. He moved to Portland in 1863 and was a
minister for nine years. In 1872 he was superintendent for Home Missions for
Oregon and Washington. He was a founder of Pacific University in Forest Grove.

Youngson Elementary School was named after Reverend William Wallace
Youngson (1869-1955). He was the founder and the first minister of Rose City Park
United Methodist Church. Youngson was born in Pittsburg, Pennsylvania in
December 1869. While attending Drew Theological Seminary in Madison, New
Jersey, he came to Portland on Oct. 4, 1892 with Dr. Charles Edward Locke for a
vacation and stayed seven months. Locke was the minister of Old Taylor Street
Methodist Church, where Youngson met Ida Honor Farrell. Youngson returned to
New Jersey to finish his studies at Drew. From 1892-1897 he corresponded with Ida.
In September 1897, he became the minister of a Methodist Church in Vandergrift,
Pennsylvania. Youngson returned to Portland and married Ida in October 1897,
after which they returned to the east coast. In 1908, he became minister of the Park
Avenue Church in East Orange, New Jersey. The Elmer R. White family were
members who lived down the street from the church. In September 1911 the White
family moved to Portland. They were visited by Ida's mother and sister. In the
summer of 1912, Ida and her two children came to Portland to visit Ida's family (the
Farrells). In February 1912, thirteen Taylor Street church members met at Rose City
Park Community Clubhouse at the invitation of Mr. W. H. Ney to discuss
establishing a church on the east side of Portland. On March 16, the men from the
group met at the Ney home and decided to organize a new church. It was Elmer
White's idea to suggest asking Youngson to return to Portland. The White family
met the Youngson family at the train station April, 1913. Youngson stated to his
congregates that their church would grow on its own.



The Holladay Center for Physically Handicapped Children was built in 1972 and was
named for Ben Holladay (1814-1887). Born in Kentucky, he came to Oregon in 1868
after making a stagecoach fortune in California. He built railroads, was a political
manipulator and a well known businessman. In 1929 the Handicapped Children's
Act was passed to provide home instruction and traveling teachers for handicapped
children bétween the ages of six and 21. In August 1937 Dr. Lewis Martin, Director of
Special Education, who supervised home teaching and Mrs. Ruth W. Lundberg,
Head of the Special Education Department of Portland Public Schools met in Dr.
Martin's office to discuss establishing a school. Mr. Anthony Lacanab and 20 parents
were approached and the idea took to seed. The first site was at the Kerns Primary
School on NE 26th and NE Everett in a two room portable. It was known as Kerns
Special School. The school was granted to open September 1937 but due to
complications officially opened January 1938. In September 1939 the school moved
to SE 32nd Avenue and Holgate and was called the Grout Center for the
Handicapped. In early 1942 it was threatened with closure unless the school could
get students home within 15 minutes of an air raid warning. Five homes within a
five block radius served as temporary homes for the students during air raid drills.
In the fall of 1950 there were handicapped students in Buckman School. In the fall
of 1954 the Grout and Buckman handicapped students were moved to an addition to
Holladay Elementary School at 1343 NE 9th Avenue. In the spring of 1958 a new
wing was added. The current Holladay Center for the Physically Handicapped was
opened February 1973.

Franklin High School is the largest institution in South Tabor.
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Streets and Street Names

When John B. Preston did the Willamette Survey in 1851-53 some of his survey
lines were alignments used for major streets. Stark Street was called Base Line
Road, which is the east-west line dividing the north and south

o M R s~ b T
Photo from City Archives of the SE 62nd and Division
Street. This is probably from the 1930s.

townships. Southeast Division Street was called Section Line Road from the 1870s
until 1882 because it too is a section line. This can be said for 62nd, 72nd, 82nd, 92nd,
102nd and 122nd Avenues.

The name Windsor is a castle residence of the British monarch in southern
England. The name originally appeared in the Woodstock Plat of 1889, but now
there are two remaining streets that use the name, one of which is Windsor Court.

8



Ivon Street was originally used in John W. Kern's Plat of 1872. There is no known
source for the name.

Clinton Street is in Clinton Kelly's Donation Land Claim but was named in the City
of East Portland's land ordinance of 1882.

Taggart Street is in Kern's 1871 plat. It was named after Major David Taggart who
served in the Army Department of the Columbia as chief paymaster.

Woodward Street was named by a 1910 city ordinance. It was named after Tyler
Woodward. He was born in Hartland, Windsor County, Vermont. He came to
Oregon via California in 1862 and settled in Portland in 1870. In 1872 he married
Mary J. Ross who was born on Ross [sland. He was President of U.S. Bank, a
two-term city council member, one-term county commissioner, a farmer, was
involved in real estate and the Transcontinental Street Railway. He was also a
Puritan and Republican.

Brooklyn Street was named after a neighborhood south of SE Powell Boulevard

Tibbetts Street was named after Gideon Tibbetts. He was born in Maine between
1808-1810. He came to Oregon in 1847 and settled a Donation Land Claim in 1851.
He died in 1887.

Kelly Street was named after Clinton Kelly, who was the father of Plympton Kelly.
Clinton was born in 1808 in Pulaski County, Kentucky. He married Mariah in 1841.
They arrived in Oregon in 1848 and settled a Donation Land Claim in 1849. He had
one other wife, Mary Baston, in 1827 and a large family. He was a Methodist
Episcopal preacher. In 1872 he subdivided his Donation Land Claim as the Kelly
Plat. He died in 1875. The street name was adopted in 1902.

Franklin Street was named in the Waverly subdivision in 1882 after the American
Revolution statesman.

Haig Street was formerly named Karl, but during World War I, anti-German
sentiment arose and this Teutonic name was changed in 1918 to its current name
honoring a British general and field marshal Douglas Haig.

Powell Boulevard was formerly called Powell Valley Boulevard. Ironically, there
were three men who had Donation Land Claims in Gresham whose name was
Powell, but they weren't related to each other. They were James Powell, Jackson
Powell and Dr. J. P. Powell who was the Multnomah County Coroner.



Plan Purpose

The South Tabor Neighborhood Plan was written to help guide our neighborhood
through changes anticipated in the next 20 years. Metro anticipates that over 500,000
new residents will move to the Portland metropolitan region in those 20 years. The
City of Portland has set a target of attracting at least 100,000 of these new residents.

The city proposed many different options for increasing density in our
neighborhoods, and South Tabor is willing to bear its share of that density.
However, we want our neighborhood to remain livable for our families, our streets
to be safe, our schools to remain functional with high quality education for our
children, and our businesses to remain viable.

We have used this opportunity to assess our neighborhood, our desires, our
problems, what we want to keep and what we want to change. This plan will guide
decision-makers on matters of land use, transportation, capital expenditures and, to
a limited extent, recreational and social programs. It will guide the neighborhood
association as it works with developers and businesses on proposed changes. It has
already helped our residents understand and better communicate with each other
and better understand the rules and regulations which affect our neighborhood.

The Artisan's Home at 7300 SE Division, also known as United Artisans, Masonic Operation.
Courtesy of Oregon Historical Society CN#007016.
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The Planning Process

The South Tabor Neighborhood Plan got its informal start on October 29, 1992 and
its formal start on December 17, 1992, when the Neighborhood Association and
Portland Bureau of Planning held a workshop as part of the Outer Southeast
Community Plan. A Steering Committee was formed by interested residents
attending the workshop. Between October, 1992 and February, 1994 the South Tabor
Steering Committee met approximately twice a month except during the summer
months.

Articles about the neighborhood planning process were included in each issue of the
neighborhood's newsletter between March, 1992 and April, 1993. Flyers regarding
meetings and, in some cases, copies of the draft plan were frequently given to
business owners and managers to involve them more closely in the process.

A workshop in April, 1993 gave- other residents the opportunity to comment on the
first draft plan, its direction and provisions. It was reviewed by the Technical
Advisory Committee (TAC) on August 17, 1993. Comments from both the
workshop and TAC meeting have been incorporated into this version.

On Thursday, March 17, 1994 the Bureau of Planning and the South Tabor
Neighborhood Association held another workshop at St. Marks Lutheran Church
on the February 1994 draft of the plan and relevant provisions of the proposed outer
southeast policies and alternatives. :

The TAC reviewed the plan again in August 1994 and made its recommendations.
Requested changes were made and the South Tabor Neighborhood Association
membership adopted the plan at their January 19, 1995 meeting.

The adopted proposed neighborhood plan was forwarded to the Planning
Commission, along with the Proposed Outer Southeast Community Plan in
February 1995. Hearings were held on the Outer Southeast Community Plan, the
neighborhood plans including South Tabor's and the Outer Southeast Business Plan
on March 14 and 28, 1995. After their June 20, 1995 hearing on amendments
requests, the Planning Commission approved two amendment requests to the
South Tabor Neighborhood Plan.

The recommended community, neighborhood and business plans were forwarded
to the Portland City Council for their consideration. City Council hearings on the
plans including South Tabor's were held on November 8 and 15, 1995 and January
11, 1996. City Council adopted Ordinance No. 169763, which makes the South Tabor
Neighborhood Plan part of the Portland Comprehensive Plan on January 31, 1996.
On the same date City Council also adopted the plan’s Action Charts by Resolution
No. 35491.

11



Relationship to Outer Southeast Community Plan and Portland
Comprehensive Plan

The South Tabor Neighborhood Plan is part of the Outer Southeast Community
Plan. The Outer Southeast Community Plan, and the neighborhood plans
developed with it, were adopted as part of Portland’s Comprehensive Plan on
January 31, 1996 by Ordinance No. 169763 and Resolution No. 35491. The Outer
Southeast Community Plan creates an overall framework for a 28-square-mile study
area. This framework establishes programs, policies, and regulations and identifies
actions which are applicable to or are needed to benefit residents of the entire study
area. Policies, projects, programs and regulatory provisions which are special to
South Tabor are contained in the South Tabor Neighborhood Plan. The
neighborhood plan also reinforces parts of the community plan as they apply to
South Tabor.

The context within which the Outer Southeast Community Plan was developed
ensured that the provisions developed for each neighborhood were coordinated
with actions planned for the rest of the district. Compatibility of the elements
included in the Outer Southeast Community Plan as well as the neighborhood
plans was a major element of the process used for development of the Outer
Southeast Community Plan. This process assured that each neighborhood plan was
developed at the same time that the framework for the overall plan was established.
Review and refinement of the district and neighborhood plans progressed as a
single process through the development of successive drafts.

12



Comprehensive Plan Policies, Objectives and
Actions for South Tabor

The policies and objectives that follow were adopted as part of Portland's
Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 169763. Future land use changes in the
neighborhood will be required to conform with the Portland Comprehensive Plan,
the Quter Southeast Community Plan and this portion of the South Tabor
Neighborhood Plan.

The Actions were approved by Resolution No. 35491 and are advisory only. Their
accomplishment depends on the ability of the implementors listed after them to
carry them out. Circumstances may make this impossible or require that the actions
be changed or replaced with others.

Comprehensive Plan Policies 2.26 and 3.9

2.26  Outer Southeast Community Plan
Promote the economic vitality, diverse residential character, unique
environmental quality, and livability of outer southeast Portland by
including the Outer Southeast Community Plan as a part of this
Comprehensive Plan.

3.9  Outer Southeast Community Plan Neighborhoods and Business Plan
Include as part of the Comprehensive Plan neighborhood and business plans
developed as part of the Outer Southeast Community Plan. Neighborhood
and business plans developed as part of the Quter Southeast Community Plan -
are those for Centennial, Foster-Powell, Hazelwood, Lents, Mt. Scott-Arleta,
Mill Park, Montavilla, Outer Southeast Business Coalition, Pleasant Valley,
Powellhurst-Gilbert, and South Tabor. Use the Neighborhood Plans to guide
decisions on land use, transportation and capital expenditures, community
development programs, where applicable.

Objectives:*

J. Enhance the identity of the South Tabor as a stable, pleasant residential
community with close ties to its commercial neighbors and nearby parks.

* The other objectives under Policy 3.9 pertain to other neighborhoods within the
Outer Southeast Community Plan study area.
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Front Room

The front room is usually the parlor or living room. It is
close to the street and the entry, it has a more public
character and is where guests are welcomed and
entertained.

Middle Room

The middle room can take on a variety of functions. If a
light well or skylight is used to bring air and light into the
interior of the unit, it is often used as a dining room. If
rot, it may be used for the bathroom or kitchen.

Back Rooms

The back rooms are used for more private functions such
as bedrooms, They usually face a private garden or
backyard.

ROWHOUSES

From Blending Housing into Our Neighborhoods, 1994 AIA, Portland Chapter Housing Committee and
Portland Planning Bureau
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